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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335. 
 
Chelsea Schmitt: (see attachment 1) 
(7:30) 
 
Rep. Daniel Johnston: Do you have any friends that were denied this ability within ND? 
 
Ms. Schmitt: Not that I remember, but I know grand forks also passed that they were able 
to wear theirs.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: The las line of the bill, I am trying to clarify is it an 
athletic event or what, and what might be traditional tribal options?  
 
Ms. Schmitt: I was only asked to talk about graduation. 

 
Rep. Ruth Buffalo: (See Attachment 2)   
 
Rep. Heinert: It is shocking that we need a state law to allow our Native American population 
wear their traditional regalia for graduation.  
 
Rep.  Buffalo:  Yes, it’s shocking that we need to pass a bill for this, but we do need to.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  SD law just takes care of graduation issues, 
graduation ceremony is where you would want this to occur, not at other athletic events? 
 
Rep. Buffalo: Yes, exactly.  

 
Scott Davis, Executive Director for the Indian Affairs Commission: I am in support of 
this bill. I believe that this is long overdue.  
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Rep. Hoverson: I like the idea of this especially knowing what the eagle feather represents. 
It sounds like it’s already OK in ND, and there are no cases where a school has said no to 
an eagle feather? 
 
Mr. Davis: There have been plenty of cases where a school has said no to an eagle feather.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Your desire is to the application process, or more so about ….?  
 
Mr. Davis: There is a large Native American population in public schools, and you get an 
eagle feather when you earn it. Getting one is a huge honor, and not being able to wear one 
now is a big deal.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: The schools, that do have the application process, are those just standard 
applications that anyone wants to wear something different, or are they special applications 
for tribal regalia?  
 
Mr. Davis: I think that every school is different.  
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson: Where do the eagle feathers come from? 
 
Mr. Davis:  We can apply to the federal game and fish to get a deceased eagle feather.  

 
Rep. Andrew Marschall: If a spectator wanted to come and wear their regalia, they should 
be able to do that. I want to clarify that the players could get ripped off? 
 
Mr. Davis:  There is a time and place to wear the feathers, and during a sporting event 
wearing one is not that time.  
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If the bill is changed graduation, that would be 
adequate? 

 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert: There is no emergency clause in there for 2019 graduation ceremonies, 
would you want us to put in an emergency clause? 
 
Mr. Davis: I think that putting one in would be very beneficial. 

 
Rep Buffalo: Yes, I would support an emergency clause and the amendments to specify the 
graduation ceremony.  

 
Rep. Hoverson: Can you name the schools that said no? 
 
Rep. Buffalo: I will send you an email.   

 
Alexis Baxley, Executive Director for the ND School Board Association: (See 
Attachment 3) 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Have you shared this with the bill sponsor and is she ok with it? 
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Ms. Baxley: Yes. 
 
Aimee Copas, Executive Director for ND Council of Education and Leaders: We are 
fully in support of this bill, based on the change of the last line.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Would you confirm as well that there are schools in ND that have said no.  
 
Ms. Copas: It has not been brought to my attention, other than what Representative Buffalo 
has already corrected.  
 
Cheryl Kary, Executive Director of Sacred Pipe Resource Center: (See Attachment 4) 
 
Sheridan L. Seaboy-McNeil: (see attachment 5)   
 
Nephew of Sheridan: Make a career of humanity. Commit yourself to a noble struggle of 
equal rights. You will make a greater person of yourself, a greater nation of your country, and 
a finer world to live in.  
 
Ira High Elk: (see attachment 6)  

 
Joseph McNeil Jr., President of the Standing Rock Development Corporation: (see 
attachment 7) 
 
Brianna Tortulita: I want to say that it was mentioned as it was a graduation thing. I went to 
century high school and growing up on that side of town we had issues of people mocking 
us due to being Native American. I think that this bill can open the door for conversation 
about this. I do believe that this could be something that could go on beyond just graduation. 
My sister was denied the right to wear an eagle feather and moccasins at her graduation. 
The feather was from my grandma and my mother, so it is a very important thing. Having that 
right denied was tough for our family. Many kids want to move states so that they can wear 
their tribal regalia.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck: You think that we should add more items? 
 
Ms. Tortulita: Yes. 

 
Nathan Davis: I am in support of this bill because the regalia is a part of who we are and our 
culture. It says a lot if we are able to show who we are. This would be a huge step to 
strengthen the government relationship between Native American government and state.  

 
Dr. Lana Decoteau, Superintendent of Belcourt School District: I am in support of 
HB1335. This is an honor to allow our Native American students to wear their tribal regalia. 
It is a celebration of the heritage and culture.  
 
Kirstin Baesler, State Superintendent for the ND Department of Public Instruction: 
When I took office in 2013 the graduation rate was under 57% for the Native American 
population. That did go well for the overall productiveness for the ND population. It was our 
mission that all students graduate either with a high school diploma or a GED. A large port 
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of that effort is making sure that they feel there is a purpose and that they as a person are 
honored and acknowledge.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Are you aware of any schools that have said no? 
 
Ms. Baesler: Yes.  
 
Representative Hoverson: Can you email those to me?  
 
Ms. Baesler: I can share the minutes that include those names with you.  
 
NO FURTHER TESTIMONY OR QUESTIONS. MEETING CLOSED.  
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Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335.  There was an 
amendment and it only addresses that you can use an eagle plume.  There is some pictures 
which we received from Rep. Buffalo.   There was some concern if we were eliminating every 
thing but the eagle plume that there are other items that are worn.  I am not sure how detailed 
this committee wants to be or should we leave some of that to local control.  We haven’t 
adopted the amendment that was proposed at this point.  We might need to change the 
amendment if we wanted to add other things.  (See Attachment 1) 
 
Rep. Johnston:  I that is a good reason why we should leave this at the local level.  In 
testimony we really didn’t hear anything convincing that says it is not working.  The question 
has been, have you ever been turned down at the local level.  This should obviously be 
allowed and if a district determined that they shouldn’t be allowed to wear something they 
would probably loose in the court of public opinion.   I don’t think we need a top down 
approach to it.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Rep. Hoverson you asked for some minutes? 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Yes I also followed up with Miss Baesler as well as Rep. Buffalo.  Are there 
any schools that have actually said no. I would like more time to find out about this.   It seems 
a little micro-managing.  If it was up to me to wear it, I liked it.   But I don’t live there.   
 
Rep. Hager:  One of the reasons is specifically United Tribes brings people from Native 
American cultures from across the country so we are seeing many different types of regalia 
that is sacred in each of the tribes.  You have heard the lengthy process to allow sacred 
things and maybe we are at a time where we do need a little more top down guidance to the 
local school districts.   I was looking at the history of a tassel, maybe some of that history 
came from the eagle feather. The tassel was added within my lifetime.  There are some 
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similarities there and us looking at this and validating this.  I think this is the time for us to be 
doing this.  This is a very significant thing for everyone who came in here. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I do appreciate those comments but once you write something into state 
law I could easily see it coming back next session and then other things being brought forth 
to be adding in. 
 
Rep. Hager:   When I signed onto the bill I thought it would be a little more encompassing 
than just the Native American culture.  I think especially in the Fargo school system.  We 
have many different cultures represented.  This is a very narrow definition.  I think this is the 
first place for us to start as what we as a state are validating for Native American students in 
the state. 
 
Rep.  Heinert:   At first I thought this bill was too broad then the more I listened to testimony 
then I thought the bill was right on.  But the only other thing that came up was the emergency 
clause so it would go into effect for the graduation in May 2019.  It says the board of school 
districts or school.  So I don’t think we have to worry about the University systems or other 
private institutions like United Tribes. 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  When I was on the school board concerning baccalaureate and praying at 
the graduation ceremonies, those are done separately now for a separate group people.  If 
they want to recognize their culture maybe they should be doing a baccalaureate service?  I 
have a hard time separating that and this.  I think once this starts where does this stop. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  We could amend to not violate the prohibited items, such as tobacco or weapons, 
just thinking of the different items from different cultures that are significant items. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  You are proposing a clarification on the amendment? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Yes.  
 
Rep.  Johnston:   Did anyone receive anything that specified that this is a problem in North 
Dakota? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Superintendent Baesler said it was happening and there 
is an Indian Advisory Committee that has some notes.  We need to follow up on this.  We are 
not sure on how many schools this affected.  There were 13 testimonies in support of this bill 
and no opposition to this bill. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  When we talk about objects of cultural significance, would that allow things 
that could be offensive, since maybe a hood or something like that?  Just wondering what 
kind of door does this open? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Yes that is a good point and we need to have some local 
control back into there.  
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Rep. Pyle:   Central Cass allows the students to decorate their cap with different things.  
There is no true significance but it is personal to each graduate.  I don’t know if they regulate 
it or not.  
 
Rep. Guggisberg:  It seems like there is a lot of people who feel this is important enough to 
come and testify and change the law.   There was no opposition to it.   Sometimes we dig in 
to deep and get a little scared and something happens that was unintended.  South Dakota 
just did this and I don’t think we will run into any big issues by passing this law.  
 
Rep. Owens:   The only thing I see is how wide open it was and there is no definition of 
regalia and there has been a couple suggestions here that sound good and in a school 
sponsored activity or event, I understand the amendment will strike that and do just award 
ceremonies and graduation which limits this to those events.  
 
Rep. M. Johnson:  The governor has gone out of his way to repair some relationships. 
I’m not sure what a no vote would do. 
 
Rep.  Heinert:  The point about wearing traditional tribal regalia, I think we are telling the 
school boards that they have to allow this but we are not defining what they consider tribal 
regalia.  The students that appeared before us, if they would show up and show the school 
boards and it is traditional and here is my proof that it is traditional.  I think it should be up to 
each individual school board’s decision and to make that the way we have the bill written.  
That would be the proper way of doing it.  I would be perfectly fine with going the way it is 
originally just adding the emergency clause.   
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  I can agree with those comments but how about sanctioned events, like 
football or basketball or do you just want to go with graduation? 
 
Rep.  Heinert:  I have been to many games where I have seen the Native population wear 
regalia.  There has never been an issue with this other than graduation ceremony which they 
had to get permission to wear the eagle plume.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  To clarify the sanctioned events, if you are a participant 
in the sanctioned events such as a football player versus an observer that is different.  We 
have the South Dakota law and it is almost the same.  
 
Rep. Hager:  What was the proposed amendment and does it still include the eagle feather 
and eagle plume or is that eliminated? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  This is exactly like the South Dakota law it includes tribal 
regalia and eagle feather and eagle plume. 
 
Appointed subcommittee to work on HB 1335 to include Rep. Hager, Rep. Pyle, and Rep. 
Guggisberg and if you want to include Rep. Buffalo please do.  Bring forth and amendment.   
Hearing closed on HB 1335. 
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Subcommittee hearing consisting of Rep. Pyle, Rep. Hager and Rep. Guggisberg. On HB 
1335.  

 
Rep Pyle:  Opened the hearing. We want the amendment to be a school district or a school 
may not establish a dress code policy that includes prohibiting a student from wearing 
traditional tribal regalia or objects of cultural significance at a graduation ceremony.  For the 
purposes of this section the term tribal regalia or object of cultural significance means and 
eagle feather or eagle plume.  Went over a proposed amendment for HB 1335 and compared 
it to the current South Dakota law with the committee.  
 
Rep Guggisberg:  Made a motion to adopt the amendment (See Attachment 1). 
 
Rep. Hager:  Seconded. 
 
Voice Vote taken:  Motion carried to amend HB 1335.   
 
Rep Pyle: made a motion to add emergency clause. 
 
Rep.  Hager:  Seconded. 
 
Rep Pyle:  Any further discussion?  Seeing none.  
 
Voice vote taken:  Motion carried to add Emergency clause to HB 1335. 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Chairman Owens:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335. Do you have amendments? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Explained the amendment for HB 1335. This is what we thought we could get 
through the chamber.   The sponsor was okay with the graduation part. (See Attachment 1) 
 
Chairman Owens:  The way you have it written merely it says they cannot prohibit at a 
minimum this and it does not restrict them from creating a dress code that allows other things 
or restricting other things. 
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  Made a motion to adopt the proposed amendment to HB 1335. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded 
 
Rep. M. Johnson:  So far I have not heard that anyone of Native American decent has had 
input on this amendment and for all or us to define what is tribal regalia is not energy well 
spent. I oppose the amendment.   I don’t think we should have a problem with us saying 
traditional tribal regalia or objects of cultural significance as defined by the local school 
district.  
 
Rep. Johnston: I will support the amendment but I will not support the bill.  I don’t think we 
should be in this business.  Let’s keep it at the local level.  
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  I was reading Mr. Davis’s amendments and they mirror what he brought 
to us and he is representing everyone concerned with this bill I think. I have no problem with 
these amendments.  
 
Rep. Guggisberg:  I asked Mr. Davis if he shared the amendment with the bill sponsor and 
he said yes and she was okay with it at that time. 
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Vice Chairman Schreiber- Beck:   If someone came in with a jingle dress and that is 
considered tribal regalia, I don’t think we should be the ones to determine that.  We did not 
receive a clarification how many schools have a problem with this.  That was supposed to 
come from some Tribal association that meets. 
 
Chairman Owens:  With this bill we are not defining what it is we are telling the local school 
board at a minimum what it is.  They can still authorize anything that they want.  We didn’t 
hear any opposition to this.  My problem with it was where it said “while participating school 
sanctioned or sponsored or events” seemed very broad to me.  From the state standpoint I 
just wanted to say “award ceremonies and graduation”.   Where if we leave it to the local 
district they could restrict everything as they can do now.  We are recognizing there is a right 
to a minimum amount.  
Rep. D. Johnson:  That is why I support this amendment because my main concern was the 
eagle feather and the plume and graduation.  Leave the rest of it back to the local districts if 
we want local control. 
 
Chairman Owens:  With this amendment they will still have local control of every little thing 
but they will not be able to restrict those two items at a graduation. 
 
Voice vote:  taken to adopt the amendment to HB 1335.   Motion carried. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Do we want to wait and get more information?  Any further discussion?  
Seeing none. 
 
Rep D. Johnson:  I move a Do Pass as amended on HB 1335. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Owens:   Any further discussion?  Seeing none.  The clerk will call the roll. 
 
Roll call vote taken:  Yes   11   No 1   Absent  2.  
 
Rep. Pyle:  Will carry the bill.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to student dress code policies; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Buffalo; Att. #2-Hall; Att. #3-DeKok; Att. #4-Two-
Eagle 

 
Chairman Schaible: The hearing for HB 1335 is open. Representative Buffalo. 
 
(0:00:23) Representative Buffalo, Dist. 27: See Att. #1.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Are there any questions? Senator Oban. 
 
Senator Oban: I think it would be good for all of us to learn the importance of the eagle 
feather or the plume. Could you explain to us what that means? 
 
(3:13) Representative Buffalo: The importance and significance of eagle feathers and eagle 
plumes is the eagle is very important to our Native American traditions. Although we have 
over 500 different tribes, the eagle has been consistently universal across tribes, across 
borders. The eagle feather is primarily worn by the men and boys. The eagle plume is more 
of a fluffy, softer plume that is generally worn by women and girls. These items are given to 
individuals if they have done great deeds. I first received my eagle plume when I was a high 
school senior and it was given to me by a member of Gripping Earth clan that I belong to. I 
am a member of the Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara (MHA) Nation. Elders, people that have 
that right within your community, veterans provide that honor to people that have done great 
deeds in their communities. In this case, it would be crossing a big – huge – milestone, life 
event, such as high school graduation.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions.  
 
(5:05) Willow Hall, Lives in Dist. 47: See Att. #2.  
 
(6:33) Melanie Angel Moniz: See tape for Native Language spoken. My name is Butterfly 
Woman, my English name is Melanie Angel Moniz. I come to you this morning to support HB 
1335. As an auntie, I have a nephew who will be graduating in two years and these are 
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milestones for us and it is an honor. I urge you to pass this bill. It is going to bring the 
community together. It is much needed for us learn to get together and unite. Thank you. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Any questions? Thank you. Other testimony for the bill. 
 
(7:26) Carel Two Eagles: I stand in favor of 1335. The rate of graduation from high school 
amongst our youth is extremely low. The rate of suicide and kinds of self-abuse is pretty high. 
In addition to our cultural heritage recognition, we are citizens of the United States, as well 
as of our own nations. We have dual citizenship courtesy of the Schneider act of 1924. This 
is only appropriate since it was our land first. Our people have volunteered for the military at 
far higher rates of all other races on turtle island combined. Granting us the vote was 
recognition of that. As citizens of this nation, then we have first amendment rights and to not 
be allowed to express our cultural heritage through wearing eagle feathers and regalia is to 
violate our first amendment rights - freedom of speech, freedom of expression, freedom of 
religion. Our youth need all the help they can get. We get a tremendous amount of static – 
for lack of a better word – to deny our traditions. I am a great grandmother and I still get it. If 
I had a dollar for every time somebody in ND said, “If you would drop treaty rights and 
traditionalism, we’d make you really rich.” I would already be really rich. That’s terrible. I mean 
I have put up with this for a lifetime. These kids are not as tough as I am – yet. I keep hoping, 
but you know. But I think this is certainly a worthy bill. We are not going to go away and we 
are not going to become extinct. Recommending Do Pass on this bill will provide a lot more 
power to the individual – a feeling of power. That is what keeps us going. It keeps anybody 
going when times are tough. Senator Oban asked about the significance of eagle – (Native 
language spoken.) I walk with a pipe. The pipe is holy. The reason we use eagle is because 
eagle flies higher than any other bird and carries our prayers to the spirits more directly and 
more quickly. If there is a prayer that is unanimous throughout Indian country, it is that we 
have more kids that graduate in high school and go on to college. I have a sister who was 
fostered out and she was battered. She didn’t graduate high school. She hung out with a 
bunch of people who were eventually somehow motivated and they went and got two-year 
degrees and they kind of dragged her along. After she had her two-year degree, they decided 
they were going to go for a four-year degree and dragged her along again. She really didn’t 
go that willingly, she kept saying “I can’t, I can’t” and I am in the background saying “Of course 
you can. Go do it, I did it – you can do it.” Well, she got a four-year degree in Special 
Education and people from the state came to her. By then she had learned to talk back. They 
said to her “We need more people with advanced degrees.”. She said. “We need more people 
with high school diplomas.” They said, “we will pay you a stipend to go on.” Today she has 
two of them – one in intellectual development and the other in Special Education. I am so 
proud of her, I could just pop. She was a poster child for something out of UND called “Not 
Beads and Feathers Anymore” We need more like that, we really do. I am asking that you 
recommend Do Pass.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Thank you.  
 
(12:14) Sheridan McNeil: See tape for Native Language spoken. My Dakota name is 
Respects the People Woman. My English name is Sheridan McNeil. I am from Bismarck and 
from Standing Rock. Today, I stand here in support of HB 1335. I want to share a little story 
– we are story tellers – I was given my Dakota name by my grandmother. She watched me 
at one of our sacred ceremonies interacting with people and things. She saw me through her 
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eyes as respecting all the people that were there. For me, that is a big responsibility and a 
reminder for me every day in how I need to interact to honor my grandmother, to honor my 
family, and to honor my people. When I was given that name, I was also given an eagle 
plume in honor of that name and in honor of my grandmother. I brought my plume here today 
to show what a plume looks like and what we are discussing. I wear this at our sacred 
ceremonies and anytime I am in prayer. I wear this as a reminder of who I am and how my 
grandmother seen me and how I want to make her and my family proud. I wear this so my 
kids know who we are and where we come from. I also brought with today my son’s eagle 
feathers. My son was given his eagle feather for his name – one of them was given for his 
name – that he received. His name was passed down – our family comes from Inkpaduta 
(Scarlet Tip). That is our ancestor. He was given his name from one of Inkpaduta’s sons. 
When we are given a name in our culture, we are usually given an eagle feather or another 
item of significance depending on where your culture is from. That helps create driving with 
in our culture, within our youth to empower them and give them that sense of belonging and 
so they always know where we are from. The other eagle feather he received was from his 
father who has passed away from colon cancer. His father graduated from the UND School 
of Law. He was a barred attorney. He was the attorney for Standing Rock. His grandmother 
and grandfather on his father’s side wanted my son to have it. He is his only son. So, my son 
also carries his father’s eagle feather with him. I share these stories with you that through a 
part of education, so we are learning about one and other’s cultures and so that you don’t 
think it is just something randomly that we are asking – for the committee to pass so that we 
are not prohibited from wearing things like this when we have a great accomplishment such 
as graduations. There are other items of cultural significance, but as the bill stands right now, 
it is for eagle feathers and eagle plumes. Inclusion of our cultures in schools creates healther 
and stronger communities. Inclusion in anything helps when we stand together united – helps 
create healthier, stronger communities. In ND, we want that for all of our youth. We want to 
send that message to all of youth. We had some youth here in the room earlier, and it also 
send a positive message to thjem. If we say that we are prohibiting anything for any of our 
students to wear that is of cultural significance, what kind of message is that sending to them? 
We want to keep the message – the message is positive and show our youth that we are 
proud of ND – all of ND and who we are and we stand united with everyone regardless of 
your race, religion or color. Just kind of a comparison – there is a lot of – when we talk about 
things that are sacred to us – they are so prescious to us it is sacred and maybe in the 
Christian world it is something that is holy. That is exactly what these are to us. They are 
sacred and holy to us and we hold them very dear to our hearts.  
 
Chairman Schaible: You mentioned that the one feather was given by his father. Who else 
gives these feathers? Can you explain that a little bit? 
 
Sheridan McNeil: Right – I think Representative Buffalo had touched on that briefly and so 
like I had said earlier, my grandmother gave them to me. My grandfather gave the feathers 
to my sons. It can be anyone of our elders that can give a feather. Dreams are really 
significant in our culture. If someone has a dream to give a person a name or for one of their 
accomplishments that person is allowed to give them a feather. Veterans are held in high 
regard within our culture as they are anywhere and veterans also can give a feather. Feathers 
can be given in the form of appreciation, an accomplishment, - it is a very sacred gift when 
someone gives you a feather and it is a great reminder of who we are as a people and 
everything our culture stands for.  
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Chairman Schaible: Seeing no other questions, thank you. Other testimony in favor of the 
bill. 
 
(18:39) Lisa Casarez: I testify in favor of 1335. See tape for Native Language spoken. Good 
morning everybody, my relatives. My Hidatsa name is Pink Blossom. I work and teach at the 
same school I graduated from in Mandaree, ND on the Fort Berthold Reservation. It would 
be with tremendous graditude to have you support this bill in support of indigenous children 
and people in ND. Symbolism and ceremony are important in every culture with tribal cultures 
being no exception. To introduce this section in the ND Century Code wold be a positive and 
more inclusive amendment and the honor child practices that are practiced even before the 
century code. There is one story I would like to share with you. A few years ago, the Grand 
Forks Public School System granted the use of eagle feathers and eagle plumes after it was 
brought to light that teachers and admin at the Grand Forks Central High School tried to 
prohibit graduating seniors from using beadwork and an eagle feather during graduation. He 
was able to walk with his feather only after changing at the last minute without permission. I 
applaud this young man’s actions who is now a student at Arizona State University. He did 
not allow admin to prohibit his freedom of expression, his culture identity and pride. With the 
passing of this bill, many more youth should not have to resort to breaking school policy to 
assert their culture identity and pride during an educational milestone. As a teacher, 
especially on the reservation, we don’t have many things – laundry mat or even a grocery 
store. We do have our culture, our – this is encouraged, but I also think it would be great for 
schools everywhere to honor this for all of our indigenous students and perhaps also culture 
expression for other students who come from different backgrounds.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Thank you. Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
(21:16) Barbara Villella: I am here as an Italian American woman. My name is Barbara 
Villella in support of my neighbors and all of the communities that reside in the United States. 
I am never told that I can wear a cross necklace, but not a cross headband. I am never told 
that I can wear earrings, but not something else. I feel that I want to support my neighbors 
and I also know that as a daughter of – a great granddaughter of an immigrant from Ellis 
Island, we had to go through some things that no one should have to go through as far as – 
toning down your culture to fit in. I think that in celebration, in times of sadness, in times of 
where certain things we may not understand, I don’t think it is anyone’s right to say that you 
can’t wear something so significant as well as I would love this bill to include all regalia that 
is culturally appropriate. It is a great start – eagle plume and eagle feathers – my neighbors, 
I support them and I support their quest for more justice in all realms of social relevance. I 
would like to be here to show that I think that this is a great step in the right direction. We 
have a long way to go for our neighbors and I think that this conversation is an excellent one 
to begin, but it is definitely not the end. I want to make sure my neighbors feel supported and 
so I am here today to show that support. Thank you. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
(23:09) Janessa Thompson: I live in New Salem, but I grew up in Rugby, ND. I have a lot 
of friends that grew up on the reservation. Although I didn’t experience it, I got to see a lot of 
the additional challenges that they go through. I think this bill – I support this bill in that it 
allows for them to fully express their culture in something that is important to them and that 
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is a really big milestone and they may have to face more challenges than other people do. I 
would like to see some of those challenges become less in the future. I think it is important 
to remember that all cultures bring really valuable perspectives to the table and different 
perspectives and that by allowing them to express their cultures in the way that is meaningful 
to them allows them to be more confident and able to share that perspective with us.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
Amy DeKok, ND School Boards Association: See Att. #3.   
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill. Agency testimony. Any testimony in 
opposition to the bill. Seeing none, we will close the hearing.  
 
Additional testimony was submitted via email after the hearing by Carel Two-Eagle. See Att. #4.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Lynn Wolf 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to student dress code policies; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments. 

 
Chairman Schaible: Committee we are looking at HB 1335.  
 
Motion by Marcellais to Do Pass HB 1335.  
 
Second by Oban.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 7 Yeas; 0 Nays; 0 Absent.  
 
Motion Carries.  
 
Senator Marcellais will carry the bill.  
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